
AUGUST 23RD, 2017 
REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

 

 

Meeting called by:                  Port of Kingston Commissioners

 

Type of meeting:                     Regular Meeting 
 
Welcome to the August 23rd, 2017 Regular Meeting of the Kingston Port Commission.  

This is a preliminary agenda and is subject to change. 

Agenda Topics 

1. CALL TO ORDER     

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: Citizens may address the Commission regarding any item related 

to Port business, including items on the agenda.  After being recognized by the Chair, 

please move to the front of the room and address your comments to the 

Commissioners. Please identify yourself by stating your name. In order to hear as 

many people as possible, the Commission will refrain from commenting on 

individual testimony until public comment has been taken. Public comment period is 

limited to 30 minutes. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: These matters are routine and will be enacted by one motion of 

the Commission with no separate discussion. If discussion is desired, that item may be 

removed from the Consent Agenda by a Commissioner. 

A. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes - July 26th, 2017   

B. Approval of Warrants 

6. FINANCIAL REPORT: Prepared by Hearthstone CPA Group  

A. Financial Report - July 2017  

7. ACTION ITEMS 

A. Communications Coordinator - Approval of New Staff Position 

B. CERB Grant Feasibility Study - Presentation of Supplemental to Heartland LLC’s 

Final Report 

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting 

 
                                                                         08/23/2017 1:00 PM 

  Village Green Community Center- Windermere Room: 26159 Dulay Rd NE  
Kingston, WA 98346 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



AUGUST 23RD, 2017 
REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

C. Enduris Update (For Discussion Only) 

D. Port Office Expansion Project - Approve Contract for Homeland Construction 

Company, Inc.  

8. OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Welcome to Kingston Electronic Sign - Discussion on Rates and Policy 

B. Master Plan Revisions - Part 4 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT: Citizens may address the Commission regarding any item related 

to Port business, including items on the agenda.  After being recognized by the Chair, 

please move to the front of the room and address your comments to the 

Commissioners. Please identify yourself by stating your name.  

10. RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Commission will recess to Executive Session per 

RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) “To discuss with legal counsel representing the agency matters 

relating to agency enforcement actions, or to discuss with legal counsel representing 

the agency litigation or potential litigation to which the agency, the governing body, 

or a member acting in an official capacity is, or is likely to become, a party, when 

pubic knowledge regarding the discussion is likely to result in an adverse legal or 

financial consequence to the agency.” 

11. RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING 

12. COMMISSIONER REPORT 

13. STAFF COMMENTS  

14. NEXT REGULAR MEETING - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 27TH, 2017 AT 1:00 P.M. 

15. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



July 26th, 2017 REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

 

 

Meeting called by:                  Port of Kingston Commissioners
 

Type of meeting:                     Regular Meeting 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Commissioners Present    Commissioners Excused 

Commissioner Walt Elliott     

Commissioner Bruce MacIntyre 

Commissioner Mary McClure    

Staff Present      Counsel Present 

Executive Director, Jim Pivarnik   Goodstein Law Group LLP, Seth Goodstein  

Recording Secretary, Samantha Berger  Hearthstone CPA Group, Dennis Treger 

Public in Attendance: 10 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 1:03 p.m.     

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: Approve Agenda as written. 

Moved by: Commissioner Bruce MacIntyre 

Seconded by: Commissioner Walt Elliott 

Action: Passed 3-0 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  

A. Meeting Minutes of, Regular Meeting - June 28th, 2017 

B. Warrants #32431-32453, totaling $32,521.94 June 30, 2017 

 Warrants #32454-32487, totaling $34,677.27 July 15, 2017 

 Warrants #32488-32506, totaling $143,636.06 July 26, 2017 

 Electronic Warrant, $6,294.68 July 6, 2017 #R47858 

 Electronic Warrant, $5,563.48 July 6, 2017 #R47859 

 Electronic Warrant, $4,519.72 July 10, 2017 #R47974 

 Electronic Warrant, $6,244.00 July 21, 2017 #R48524  

Port of Kingston Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting 

 
                                                                         07/26/2017 1:00 PM 

                 Village Green Community Center - Windermere Room: 26159 Dulay Rd NE  
Kingston, WA 98346 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



July 26th, 2017 REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

Motion: To Approve Consent Agenda as written. 

Moved by: Commissioner Walt Elliott 

Seconded by: Commissioner Bruce MacIntyre 

Action: Passed 3-0 

6. PRESENTATIONS:  

A. Pacific NW Boater Guide: Port of Kingston - Presentation of New Port 

Promotional Video 

Due to technical issues, this Presentation Item was revisited at the conclusion of all 

Action Items on this agenda. 

B. CERB Grant Feasibility Study: Downtown Waterfront Properties Study & Site 

Development Plan - Presented by Heartland LLC 

Project Leads Matt Anderson, Matt Henderson and Carson Bowlin of Heartland LLC 

presented the Downtown Waterfront Properties Study & Site Development Plan, 

Heartland’s final report of findings from the CERB Grant funded feasibility study, 

discussed the methods, data sources and approach used in the report’s preparation, 

and fielded questions as posed by those members of the public in attendance and 

those from Commissioners Elliott, MacIntyre and McClure. The Board took 

comments and responded to questions from the public throughout the 

presentation, responding to attendees’ inquiries and comments about zoning, public 

beach and waterfront access, and concerns about maintaining vehicle parking 

should proposed development options reduce or eliminate existing parking stalls on 

Port property. Heartland reviewed the contents of their final report of findings, 

which included a portfolio overview of site properties and regional context, a public 

outreach summary, market overview, alternative development concepts and 

suggested marketing strategies. Alternative development concepts included cottage 

rentals and dry stack boat storage for the West Kingston Road site, and a boutique 

hotel and signature restaurant for the Washington Street site. The Commissioners 

expressed their appreciation to both Heartland and the public for their participation 

in the process of conducting this study. For discussion only. No action was taken. 

7. FINANCIAL REPORT: Prepared by Hearthstone CPA Group  

A. 2nd Quarterly Financial Report - Presented by Dennis Treger of Hearthstone 

CPA Group 

Dennis Treger of Hearthstone CPA Group presented the 2nd Quarterly Financial 

Report to the Board and attendees, and reported on the Statement of Revenue and 

Expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The Board took comment and 

answered questions from members of the public in attendance in response to the 

stated loss in Revenue from Transient Moorage compared to last year, citing the 

Covered Moorage Roof Replacement Project as a potential cause.  

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



July 26th, 2017 REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

8. ACTION ITEMS: 

A. Marina Host - Approval of Service Agreement & Marina Host Guide 

Executive Director Jim Pivarnik presented the Board with the Final Draft Marina Host 

Service Agreement and Marina Host Guide for the Board’s review and approval. 

Motion: To Approve Marina Host Service Agreement and Marina Host Guide, and 

authorize Executive Director to move forward with addition of the Marina Host 

position. 

Moved by: Commissioner Bruce MacIntyre 

Seconded by: Commissioner Walt Elliott 

Action: Passed 3-0  

B. PRESENTATION: Pacific NW Boater Guide: Port of Kingston - Presentation of 

New Port Promotional Video - Originally Agenda Item 6A. Due to technical 

issues, this Presentation Item was revisited at the conclusion of all Action Items 

on this agenda. 

Port Staff presented Pacific NW Boater Guide’s full-length promotional video 

featuring the Port of Kingston to the Board and all in attendance. For presentation 

purposes only. No action was taken. 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Mrs. Nancy (last name not given for the record), a member of the public, 

commented on behalf of her husband, who could not attend, with his question to 

the Board on the possible options for development of Port-owned properties; asking 

why the Port would consider doing anything other than boats. 

10. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT:  

Executive Director Jim Pivarnik updated the Board on current Port activities and 

projects. He spoke on the Covered Moorage Roof Repair Project and the Port Office 

Expansion. He provided an update on the Washington Blvd Park Project, briefing the 

Board on his meeting with the County. He also spoke on the Welcome to Kingston 

Electronic Sign, planning for upcoming budget discussions, and the upcoming KCAC 

business roundtable scheduled for August 2nd at the Village Green.  

11. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 

Commissioner Mary McClure reported on her attendance of the WPPA 

Commissioners Seminars in Alderbrook, WA, noting that there were not many Kitsap 

County ports in attendance this year. 

Commissioner Walt Elliott commented on his attendance of the WPPA 

Commissioners Seminar, stating that he would prepare a written report on useful 

information he gleaned to be forwarded to Port staff for informational use.  

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



July 26th, 2017 REGULAR PORT MEETING |      

Commissioner Bruce MacIntyre reported on his attendance of the WPPA 

Commissioners Seminar, and made a suggestion that Port staff investigate the 

possibility of local Public Ports pooling together to obtain better pricing for 

Employee Health Insurance.  

12. STAFF COMMENTS:  

Port Staff member Samantha Berger distributed to the Board the June Statement of 

Cost Centers and Employee Class Cost analysis on behalf of Port Controller Juanita 

Gomez, and presented the Board with the August 2017 Calendar of Events.  

 13. NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, August 23rd, 2017 at 1:00 p.m. 

 14. ADJOURN: 

Motion: To adjourn Meeting at 3:49 p.m. 

Moved by: Commissioner, Walt Elliott 

Seconded by: Commissioner, Bruce MacIntyre 

Action: Passed 3-0 

Meeting attested by:   ____________________________________ 

      Board Chair, Mary McClure 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Board Vice Chair, Bruce MacIntyre 

 

      

      ____________________________________ 

      Board Secretary, Walt Elliott 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Secretary to the Board, Samantha Berger 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF:  August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  5B. Approval of Warrants 

 

WARRANTS: 

1. Warrants #32507-32533, totaling $61,701.10 July 31, 2017 

2. Warrants #32534-32566, totaling $107,001.94 August 15, 2017 

3. Electronic Warrant, $5,894.66 August 4, 2017 #R49234 

4. Electronic Warrant, $6,985.86 August 4, 2017 #R49235 

5. Electronic Warrant, $8,297.52 August 7, 2017 #R49290 

6. Electronic Warrant, $5,348.08 August 18, 2017 #R49852 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 6A. Financial Report - July 2017 

 

 

 

Provided by Hearthstone CPA Group 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON

ACCOUNTANT'S COMPILATION REPORT
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JULY 31, 2017

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Accountant's Compilation Report.........

Statement of Assets, Liabilities, And Equity - Cash Basis.....................

Statement of Revenues And Expenses-Cash Basis For The Seven Months Ended July 31, 20L7 ......................

Statement of Revenues And Expenses-Cash Basis For The Month Ended July 31, 2017 and 2016...................

Statement of Revenues And Expenses-Cash Basis For The Seven lvlonths Ended July 31, 2017 and 2016 .........

Supplementary Information:

Schedule I - Revenues For The Seven Months Ended July 31, 2017.....................

Schedule II - Revenues For The l.4onth Ended July 3L,2017 and 20L6

Schedule III - Revenues ForThe Seven Months Ended July 3t,2Ot7 and 2016.....................

Schedule IV - Cash And Investments Roll Forward - Current Month

Paqe

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



=

Hearthstone CPA Group
Certrf red Publrc Accountants Princjpals

Larry A Hurley, CPA
Neal K Wlllrams, CPA, MPAcc (tax)

Chnstopher J. Cook. CPA, CFPo
David H Bail, CPA (retired)

Dennis R. Treger, CPA

4312 Kltsap Way, Sulte 102
Bremerton. WA 98312
T 360-479-46r1

August 21, 2017

To the Board of Commissioners
Port of Kingston
Kingston, WA

Management is responsible for the accompanying flnancial statements of the Port of Kingston, which
comprise the statement of assets, liabilities, and equity - cash basis as of )uly 31,2017, and the related
statement of revenues and expenses-cash basis for the month and seven months ended luly 31, 20L7 and
2016, and for determining that the clsh basis of accounting is an acceptable financial reporting framework.
We have performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting
and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We
did not audit or review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify
the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these flnancial statements.

The flnancial statements are prepared in accordance with the cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The supplementary information contained in Schedules I, II, III, N and the budgeted amounts on pages 3
and 6 are presented for purposes of addjtional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. This information is the representation of management. The information was subject to our
compilation; however we have not audited or reviewed the supplementary information and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such supplementary information.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared in accordance with the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were
included in the flnancial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Port's assets,
liabilities, equity, revenues and expenses. Accordingly, these flnancial statements are not designed for
those who are not informed about such matters.

/f"rea,* cln4",,?r-
HEARTHSTONE CPA GROUP

Member of Amencan lnstltute of Certfled Pubhc Accountants
Washington Socrety of Certified Public Accountants

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUIW. CASH BASIS

July 31, 2OU
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

ASSETS

Cash And Cash Equivalents
Cash On Hand

Cash - Operating Accounts
Cash - Marina Construction Account

Investments
Marina ReplacemenvRemediation Reserve Fund
General Fund Investments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Accrued Expenses
Pension Payable
Leasehold Taxes Payable

Sales/B&O Taxes Payable
FICA & Withholding Payable

Long-term Liabiltites

G.O. Bonds Payable

Total Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed Capital & Unreserved Retained Earnings

Current Period Net Loss

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

$ 575.00
145,510.70

87 ,840.37

5

$ 2,495,749.35

2,446.70
8,070.92
7,034.68
4,113.83

21,666.r3

800,000.00

821 666.13

2,413,457.75
-739 37 4.53

t,67 4,083.22

$ 2,49s,749.3s

Page 2

2,165,614.79
96,208.49

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Cash Basis

For the Seven Months Ended JulY 3L, 2Ol7
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

PERIOD TO
ACTUAL DATE BUDGET X*

BUDGET
VARIANCE

OPERATING REVENUES
Marina User charges
Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)
Miscellaneous Income
Retail Sales (Net)
Fuel Sales (Net)

Total Operating Revenues

5 507,406.16 $
295,060.46

4,629.50
t,329.91

76,848.t2

518,651.00 $
284,796.00

4,5t4.00
1,615.00

65,024.00

(11,244.84)
t0,264.46

115.50
(28s.09)

|t,824.r2

885 274.L5

1s,675.00
11,608.89
4,674.00
s,9!5.44
9,74t.79

51,336.14
4,927.76

30,079.76
101,956.19

700.00
4,183.47

t0,674.74
0.00

6,403.22
166,415.15
65,262.33

1,564.86
10,275.15
4,478.89

11,875.39
(6.45)

13,234.04
41,983.91
37,6n.9r

750,407 .03
34,300.27

312,777.20
8,195.40

714.00
4,8L6.20

350.00
2,927.21
2,69t.62

26 639.87

r,747 196.37

16,650.00
14,000.00
3,150.00
4,725.00
8,764.00

20,419.00
9,456.00

26,440.00
103,493.00

800.00
2,26t.00
8,400.00

0.00
6,305.00

0.00
58,335.00

875.00
16,105.00
8,120.00

11,130.00
0.00

6,720.00
43,365.00
31,199.00

750,407.03 *
35,000.00

307,041.00
0.00

710.00
4,564.00

0.00
5,860.00
3,500.00

26 033.00

1 533

(97s.00)
(2,391.11)
1,524.00
1,190.44

977.79
30,9L7.t4
(4,534.24)
3,639.76

(1,s36.81)
(100.00)

1,922.47
2,274.74

oe,
166,415.15

6t927.33
689.86

(s,829.8s)
(3,641.11)

745.39
(6.46)

6,514.04
(1,381.09)

424.97
0.00

(699.73)
5,136.20
8,195.40

4.00
252.20
3s0.00

(2,932.79)
(808.38)
606.87

874,600,00 10,674.t5

OPERATING EXPEI{SES
Accounting
Advertising & Promotion
Commissioners Compensation
Commissioners Travelffraining & Education

Computer Supplies/Expense
Consulting Fees

Dues & Subscriptions
Eledncity
Employee Medical
Environmental Inspections
Equipment Rental

Excise Tax Expense

Insurance
Landscaping
Lawsuit/Judgement
Lega I

Miscellaneous
Offlce Credit Card Fees

Office Supplies
Operating Supplies
(Over)/Short
Parking Expense
Payroll Taxes
Pension Expense
Purchase of Capital Assets
Repairs & lulaintenance
Salaries & Wages

SoundRunner Ferry Expense

Storage Rent
Telephone
Temp Agency Labor
Training & Education
Travel
Water, Sewer & Garbage

Loss From Operations

NONOPERATING REVENUES

NET LOSS

xBudget represents actual cipital expenditures year to date.
**Budget amended April 2017

827.03 213 969.34

(862,s22.22) 659,227.03) (203,29s.19)(

$ (739,374.s3) $

99 996.00 23 151.69

Page 3

559 231.0 $ ____!gqlll4)

Total Operating Expenses

123,147 .69

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - Cash Basis

For the Month ended July 3L, 2Ol7 and 2016
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

20L7 2016
OPERATING REVENUES

Marina User Charges
Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)
Miscellaneous Income
Retail Sales (Net)
Fuel Sales (Net)

Total Operating Revenues

Total Operating Expenses

Income (Loss) From Operations

NONOPERATING REVENUES

Chanoe

$ 83,16s.11 $ 82.099.03 $ 1,065.08
52,381.08 47,337.13 5,043.95
3,139.81 3,000.05 139.76
783.79 r,06r.42 (277.63)

52,131.34 34,284.56 t7,U5.78

191,601.13 t67,782.19 23,818.94

OPERATING EXPENSES
Accounting
Advertising & Promotion
Audit
Commissioners Compensation
Commissioners Travelffraining & Education
Computer Supplies/Expense
Consulting Fees

Dues & Subscriptions
Electricity
Employee lvledical

Equipment Rental

Excise Tax Expense
Insurance
Landscaping
Legal
Miscellaneous
Office Credit Card Fees

Omce Supplies
Operating Supplies
(Ove0/Short
Parking Expense

Payroll Taxes

Penalties & Fines
Pension Expense
Purchase of Gpital Assets
Repairs & Maintenance
Salaries & Wages
Storage Rent
Telephone
Temp Agency Labor
Training & Education
Travel
Water, Sewer & Garbage

1,185.00
3,958.25

0.00
1,140.00
t,340.29
t,274.85

397.95
50.00

t,854.54
15,768.83

580.00
802.28

(e32.16)
156.31

4,625.00
(34.09)

t,705.78
527.04
698.38

0.00
875.37

10,161.46
0.00

4,088.92
65,407.58
5,tr6.33

45,957.18
107.00
637.80

0.00
0.00

589.02
1.880.29

1,700.00
77.25

1,536.80
584.00

0.00
228.80

0.00
7,522.50
1,846.46

11,533.56
0.00

496.24
0.00

827.06
(22,O89.70)

0.00
1,403.26
1,606.32
2,444.29

(1,338.95)
2,244.94
8,262.36

0.00
3,803.10
7,2s0.73
8,587.45

43,059.74
100.00
395.30

5,162.50
280.00

8.20
t,733.67

(s1s.00)
3,881.00

(1,s36.80)
456.00

1,340.29
1,045.05

397.95
(1,472.s0)

8.08
4,235.27

s80.00
306.04

(932.16)
(670.7s)

26,714.70
(34.0e)
302.52

(1,079.28)
(t,745.9r)
1,338.95

(1,369.57)
1,899.10

0.00
285.82

58,1s6.8s
(2,941.t2)
2,897.44

7.00
242.50

(s,162.s0)
(280.00)

580.82
746.62

t70,449.20 83,365.88 87,083.32

(63,264.38)27 151.93 U,4t6.3t

829.47 3,3t4.20 (2,484.73)

$ _-_ :129!1q_ $ __87_130;J_$ ____(5s_J4s!)_NEr TNCOME (LOSS)

Page 4

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
Statement of Revenues and Expenses - cash Basis

For the Seven Months Ended July 31, 2Ol7 and 2016
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

2017 2016
OPERATING REVENUES

Marina User Charges
Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)
N4iscellaneous Income
Retail Sales (Net)
Fuel Sales (Net)

Total Operating Expenses

NONOPERATING REVENUES

$ s07,406.16 $
29s,060.46

4,629.50
1,329.91

502,570.48 $
275,222.24

6,185.21
7,140.73

Chanoe

4,835.68
19,838.22
( 1, s55.71)

189.18
11,823.23

35 130.60

(6,8s9.00)
9,481.02

(2s,36s.30)
228.00

4,373.89
(234.01)

19,653.48
(2,938.74)
4,884.90

24,543.58
(36.s2)

3,450.79
L,t86.44
(934.00)

7,715.70
166,415.15

t3,822.43
678.47

1,718.82
(2,01s.49)

153.57
1,336.96
5,232.93

30,770.86
(4s7.83)

7 ,660.48
673,410.70

8,9t0.42
60,358.41

(s10.00)
6,677 .98

49.00
2,480.07

(32,037.70)
170.6t

1,63t.97
4,047.82

76 848.12 65,O24.89

885,274.15 850,143.55Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Accounting
Advertising & Promotion
Audit
Commissioners Compensation
Commissioners Travelffraining & Education
Computer Supplies/Expense
Consulting Fees

Dues & Subscriptions
Electricity
Employee Medical

Environmental Inspecations
Equipment Rental

Excise Tax Expense

Insurance
Landscaping
LawsuiVludgment
Legal
Miscellaneous
Office Credit Card Fees

Offlce Supplies
Operating Supplies
(over)/Short
Parking Expense
Payroll Taxes
Penalties & Fines

Pension Expense

Purchase of Capital Assets

Repairs & Maintenance
Salaries & Wages
Secretary Compensation
SoundRunner Ferry Expense

Storage Rent
Telephone
Temp Agency Labor
Training & Education

Travel
water, Sewer & Garbage

15,675.00
11,608.89

0.00
4,674.00
5,9t5.44
9,747.79

51,336.14
4,921.76

30,079.76
101,956.19

700.00
4,t83.47

10,674.74
0.00

6,403.22
166,415.15
65,262.33

1,564.86
10,275.15
4,478.89

11,875.39
(6.46)

13,234.O4
41.983.91

0.00
3t,623.9t

750,407,03
34,300.27

312,177 .20
0.00

8,195.40
714.00

4,816.20
350.00

2,927 .ZL

2,691.62
26,639.87

22,534.00
2,t27 .87

2s,36s.30
4,446.00
1,541.55
9,975.80

31,682.66
7,860.50

75,194.86
77 ,4t2.61

736.52
732.68

9,488.30
934.00

4,687.52
0.00

51,439.90
886.39

8,556.33
6,494.38

77,72t.82
(1,343.42)
8,001,11

11,213.05
457 .83

23,963.43
76,996.33
25,389.8s

251,818.79
510.00

1,517.42
665.00

2,336.13
32,387 .70

2,7s6.60
1,059.65

22,592.05

1 747 796.37 764,140.51 983 55.86

(862,s22.22) 86,003.04 (948,s2s.26)

123 147 .69 116,344.29 6,803.40

$ __93e,373.s3)_$ 202,347.33 $ (941 ,7 2t .86)

Loss From Operations

NET TNCOME (LOSS)

Page 5

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF IGNGSTON
SCHEDULE I - REVENUES

For the Seven Months Ended July 31, 2017
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

ACTUAL

388,789.20 $
3,773.66

68,018,89
10,157.82
27,904.09

3,092.00
1,u2.50
4,518.00

110.00

$ jo7,4o6it $ ___11!.9!L99_ $

PERIOD TO
DATE BUDGET X

BUDGET
VARIANCE

$ 397,887.00 $

2,674.00
79,7lt.00

5,178.00
22,327.OO

5,649.00
1,260.00
3,660.00

30s.00

(9,097.80)
1,099.66

(11,692.11)
4,979.82
5,577.09

(2,ss7.00)
(217.s0)
858.00

15,520.10
1,496.33
5,594.11

(1,209.09)
106.15
12,00

(11,450.32)
105.18

MARINA USER CHARGES
Moorage - Base Rate
Kayak
Moorage - Transient
Winter Moorage
Electricity - Permanent
Electricity - Transient
Laundry Income
Yacht Club Reservation Fees

Deposits - Forfeited
Total Marina User charges

PROPERTY RENTALS - FACILITIES
Parking
Parking Tickets
Diamond Parking
Yacht Club
Aviator Coffees & Teas, LLc Land Rent

Farmers l,larket
Hill House Rental

Department of Transportation Lease

Total Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)

RETAIL SALES
Retail Sales

Cost of Retail Sales

Total Retail Sales (Net)

FUEL SALES
Gasoline & Diesel Sales

Cost of Fuel

Total Gasoline & Diesel Sales (Net)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Property Tax Receipts
Service Charge Revenue
Tenant Deposits/Adv PmLs On AR/Disposed Assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

(s71.69)
286,60

$ _____1,1?9.e1_ $ _____-__.L91!.99_ $ _____(2989I

$ 148,477.10 $
4,s88.33
a,429.11
7,501.91
2,266.15

363.00
7,089.68

116,345.18

$ __-?9r99q.49_$

1,782.31 $
(452.40)

132,857.00 $
3,092.00
2,835.00
8,711.00
2,160.00

351.00
18,550.00

116,240.00

$ 2,354.00 $
(73e.00)

$ 256,629.47 $

(179,781.3s)
217,613.00 $

(1s2,s89.00)
39,016.47
27 192.35)

$ ___ r!!1!ll$ _______!!.9?L9!_$ _____1)p3]2

$ 11,888.87 $
(1,21s.28)

105,225.15
4,046.91
2,202.M

8,888.00 $
(12,387.00)
97,886.00

5,609.00
0.00

3,000.87
1,1,171.72

8,339.15
(1,s62.09)
2 202.04

$ 123 147.69 $ $99,996.00 $ ____4]11_,6e

* Budget amended April 2017

Page 6

___--_29119!.09_ $ ___J9i64!6

(19s.00)

____1J]23!_.84]-,

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
SCHEDULE II . REVENUES

For the Month ended July 3,., 2Ol7 and 2015
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

2016 Chanqe
MARINA USER CHARGES

Moorage - Permanent
Kayak
Moorage - Transient
Winter Moorage
Electricity - Permanent
Electricity - Transient
Laundry Income
Yacht Club Reservation Fees

Deposits - Forfeited
Total Marina User charges

PROPERW RENTALS - FACILITIES
Parking
Parking Tickets
Parkinq Diamond
Yacht Club
Aviator Coffees & Teas, LLC Land Rent
Farmer's lvlarket
Hill House Rental
Department of Transportation Lease

Total Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)

RETAIL SALES
Retail Sales

cost of Retail sales
Total Retail Sales (Net)

FUEL SALES
Gasoline & Diesel Sales

Cost of Fuel

Total Gasoline & Diesel Sales (Net)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Property Tax Receipts
Service Charge Revenue
Tenant Deposits/Adv Pmts On APJDisposed Assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

$ 83,165.11 $ 82,099,03 $ 1,066,08

$ 58,485.27 $
529.46

20,932.48
0.00

737.82
t,177.00

182.00
50.00

5.00

(9,272.44)
(19.46)

8,909.81
0.00

(324.s8)
167.00
85.75

1,52s.00
(s.00)

$ 30,728.97 $ 26,069.14 $
344.07 7,426.00

1,t27.t0 1,363.01
t,243.12 t,245.75
349.81 529.00

9.99 114.30
7,772.42 0.00

16,80s.60 16,s89.93

4,6s9.83
( 1,081.93)

(23s.e1)
(2.63)

( 179.19)
(104.31)

1,772.42
2t5.67

$s2 381.08 $ _47;g_E_$ ___1,013.9I_

$ 1,106.99 $
(323.20)

1,061.42 $
0.00

45.57
(323.20)

$ ___J9]fe $ ___]_pgt2 $ ___J2u_.51)

$

$

tt7,455.57 $
(6s,324.23)

92,095.95 $
(s7,811.39)

25,359.62
(7,st2,84

52,131.34 $ 34,284.s6 $ 17,846.78

$ 2,148.15 $
(1,215.28)

540.20
341.50

(e8s.10)

1,309.70 $
0.00

902.40
623.18
478.92

838.45
(1,21s.28)

(362.20)
(281.68)

(1,464.02)

$ 829.47 $ 3,314.20 $ (2,484.73)

Page 7

20L7

49,212.83 $
510.00

29,842.29
0.00

413.24
1,344.00

267 .7 5

1,575,00
0.00

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



MARINA USER CHARGES
N4oorage - Permanent
Kayak
l"loorage - Transient
Winter Moorage
Electricity - Permanent
Electricity - Transient
Laundry Income
Yacht Club Reservation Fees
Deposits - Forfeited
Total Marina User charges

PROPERTY RENTALS . FACILITIES
Parking
Parking l-ickets
Parking Diamond
Yacht Club

Aviator Coffees & Teas, LLC Land Rent
Farmers Market
Hill House Rental
Department of Transportation Lease

Total Property Rentals - Facilities (Net)

RETAIL SALES
Retail Sales
Cost of Retail Sales
Total Retail Sales (Net)

FUEL SALES
Gasoline & Diesel Sales
Cost of Fuel
Total Gasoline & Diesel Sales (Net)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Property Tax Receipts
Service Charge Revenue
Tenant Deposits/Adv Pmts On AR/Disposed Assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

PORT OF KINGSTON
SCHEDULE III - REVENUES

For the Seven Months Ended July 31. 2017 and 2016
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

2017

388,789.20 $
3,773.66

68,018.89
r0,$7.82
27,904.09

3.092.00
1,042.50
4,518.00

110.00

5 393,s98.37 $
2,605.10

65,540.98
9,666.73

24,034.58
4,386.50
1,075.00
1,215.00

448.22

Chanoe

(4,809.17)
1,168.56
2,477.91

491.09
3,869.51

(7,294.50)
(32.s0)

3,303.00
(338.22)

$ _l!2199.19_ $ ___!!?,sz!19_ $ ____ldt!.q!_

$ 148,477.70 $
4,588.33
8,429.tt
7,501.91
2,266.15

363.00
7,089.68

1,782.31 $
(4s2.40)

134,889.23 $
3,298.20
9,709.92
8,617.05
2,392.00

285.75
0.00

116 345.18 110 030.09

$ 295,060.46 $ 275,222.24 $ 19,838.22

$

$

1,880.43 $
(739.70)

(e8.12)
287 .30

-----E?gll- $ -----Jl4of:-$

$ 256,629.47 $
(t79,781.35)

2t7 ,614.27 $
(1s2,s89.32)

189.18

39,015.26
(27,192.03)

$ 76,848.12 $ 6s,024.89 $ 11,823.23

8,244.49 $

0.00
t04,456.28

4,605.19
(e6t.67)

3,644.38
(1,215.28)
t,768.87
(ss8.28)

3,163.71

$ t23,147.69 $ 1t6,344.29 $ 6,803,40

Page 8

2016

13,587.87
1,290.13

( 1,280.81)
(1,115.14)

( 12s.8s)
77.25

7,089.68
315.09

$ 11,888.87 $
(1,21s.28)

106,225.15
4,046.91
2,202.04

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON
SCHEDULE IV - Cash And Investments Roll Forward

Month of luly zOU
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

Beginning Cash And Investments 6/30/17
Less: Liabilities 6/30/17
Plus: Liabilities 7/31/17
Plus: Net Income for July

Ending Cash And Investments 7/3U17

$ 2,487,409.99
(83s,308.17)
821,666.13

27,981.40

$ 2,495,749.35

Page 9

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 7A. Communications Coordinator - Approval of New Staff Position 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Port Staff has identified the need for an additional staff position to be created to accommodate 

the marketing and communication goals of the Port. The Communications Coordinator would 

be responsible for organizing, creating and distributing Port newsletters, marketing materials, 

outreach campaigns and other tasks associated with streamlining the Port’s interface with the 

public and elevating customer service. Port Staff has distributed a Job Description for the 

Board’s review, recommendation and approval.  

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

Authorize Executive Director to move forward with the creation of the Communications 

Coordinator position. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 
 

Job Description: Communications & Marketing Coordinator 

 
Summary 
 
Major Responsibilities, Functions and Duties 
 

1. Provide communication support for all Port activities to include newspaper columns, 
newsletters, and advertising copy. 

2. Assistant the Port Executive director with grant writing.  
3. Provide support services for visiting boaters and groups. To include local reservations and event 

coordination. 
4. Assist Executive Director with community event coordination.  
5. Key content provider for the Port’s website.  
6. Project management when assigned. 
7. Operate the office equipment such as the computer, telephones, calculators, two-way radios, 

fax/copier, etc.  
8. Performs other tasks/duties as assigned by management.  

 
Necessary Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities 

 Current work schedule: Monday through Friday, but because of event coordination a flexible 
schedule will be required. 

 Knowledge of local community and local businesses and the ability to communicate this 
information to guests and visitors of the Port. 

 Must possess excellent communications service skills, 

 Proficient in the operation of computers, Microsoft Office, Microsoft Outlook. 

 Ability to work directly with the public, providing information and assistance on a daily basis.  

 Skill in establishing and maintaining cooperative working relationships with other employees.  

 Must be reliable and punctual.  

 Must be able to work well under pressure while being detail oriented.  

 Ability to follow through and accomplish goals.  

 Ability to independently solve problems using good judgement and creativity.  
 
Minimum Qualifications (education and experience) 

 Associate Degree in communications or marketing. 

 Valid Washington Drivers’ License with an acceptable driving record.  
 
Physical Demands 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to 
enable qualified individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.  
 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit, stand, talk, hear, and 
use hands and fingers to operate, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls. The employee is occasionally 
required to walk and use stairs, and reach with hands and arms. The employee must occasionally lift 
and/or move up to 25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include distance vision, close 
vision, and the ability to adjust focus. 
 
Acknowledgment Statement 
All employment with the Port of Kingston is “at will.” This means that the employee or the Port of 
Kingston may terminate employment at any time and for any reason. Management has the exclusive 
right to alter this job description at any time without notice. This document is not intended to exclude 
modifications consistent with providing reasonable accommodation for a disability, nor is it intended to 
be an employment agreement or contract. 
While this job description describes the essential functions and qualifications of the position described, 
it is not intended to serve as a comprehensive list of tall the duties performed by all employees in this 
job. Incumbent(s) may not be required to perform all duties listed and may be required to perform 
additional, position-related duties.  
 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 7B. CERB Grant Feasibility Study - Presentation of Supplemental to Heartland 

LLC’s Final Report 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Port Staff has compiled additional information received from the Board as a supplemental 

report to Heartland LLC’s final report of findings for the CERB Grant Feasibility Study.   

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

For Discussion and Direction.. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 7C. Enduris Update (For Discussion Only) 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Executive Director Pivarnik will brief the Commission on his facilities tour with Joe Davis, the 

new Risk Manager for Enduris.  

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

For Discussion Only. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 7D. Port Office Expansion Project - Approve Contract for Homeland 

Construction Company, Inc. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Port Staff has prepared a Contract Agreement to engage Homeland Construction Company, Inc. 

for the build phase of the Port Office Expansion Project for review and approval by the 

Commission. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

Approve Contract Agreement, and authorize Executive Director to engage Homeland 

Construction Company, Inc. for the build phase of the Port Office Expansion Project. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

                                    CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM| Port of Kingston Office Addition Project 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM 

  

PORT OF KINGSTON 

for 

Port of Kingston Office Addition 

 

Agreement made effective as of this 16th day of August, 2016, by and between the PORT OF KINGSTON, a Washington 

Public Port (hereafter called "PORT") and Homeland Construction Inc., (hereafter called “COMPANY”). 

SECTION ONE 

Contract Documents 

The contract documents consist of this Contract, plans and specs, and approved Kitsap County permit.   

SECTION TWO 

Description of Work 

The contract provides for construction of office building addition for the Port of Kingston offices in accordance with these 

contract documents and building plans. 

SECTION THREE 

Payment 

The PORT agrees to pay COMPANY, an amount not to exceed $150,733 plus tax as per attached proposal. Payments will 

be allowed when billed by COMPANY, for work that has been completed and approval from the Board of Commissioners 

has been obtained, and a Department of Labor and Industries Affidavit of Prevailing Wage Form has been received, and 

the contract release has been approved by the Department of Labor and Industries. 

SECTION FOUR 

General Conditions 

4.1 PORT shall give all instructions to COMPANY OFFICER of COMPANY, through Jim Pivarnik, Executive Director,  

 its’ nominated PORT representative. PORT will provide COMPANY access as is required to PORT’s premises to  

 perform the construction and will provide, such necessary storage areas and lay down sites as are required. 

SECTION FIVE 

General Responsibility of Company 

COMPANY duties and rights in connection with the above described project are as follows: 

5.1 Responsibility for and Supervision of Construction: COMPANY shall be solely responsible for all construction 

under this contract, including the techniques, sequences, procedures, and means, and for coordination of all 

work. COMPANY shall supervise and direct the work, and give it all attention necessary for such proper 

supervision and direction. 

5.2 Discipline and Employment: COMPANY shall maintain at all times strict discipline among its employees, and 

COMPANY agrees not to employ for work on the project any person unfit or without sufficient skill to perform 

the job for which they were employed. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

                                    CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM| Port of Kingston Office Addition Project 

5.3 Labor, Materials, and Equipment: Except as provided in this Contract, COMPANY shall provide and pay for all 

labor, materials, and equipment, including tools, construction equipment, and machinery, utilities, including 

water, transportation, and all other facilities and services necessary for the proper completion of work on the 

project in accordance with the contract. 

5.4 Payment of Taxes: COMPANY shall pay all taxes and fees required by law in connection with work on the 

project in accordance with this Agreement including sales, use, and similar taxes. 

5.5 Compliance with Construction Laws and Regulations: COMPANY shall comply with all construction laws and 

ordinances (including environmental rules and regulations) and the rules and regulations regarding work 

performance in accordance with Washington State’s Public Work and Prevailing Wage legislation, and orders of 

all public authorities relating to the performance of the work under and pursuant to this Agreement. 

5.6  Responsibility for Negligence of Employees and Subcontractors: COMPANY assumes full responsibility for and 

will hold the PORT harmless from its acts, negligence, or omissions of all its employees on the project, for those 

of its subcontractors and their employees, and for those of all other persons doing work under a contract with 

them.  

5.7  Warranty of Fitness of Equipment and Materials: COMPANY warrants to PORT that all equipment and materials 

used in the work, and made a part of the structures on such work, or placed permanently in connection with 

such work, will be new unless otherwise specified in the contract documents, of good quality, free of defects, 

and in conformity with the contract documents. It is understood and agreed between the parties to this 

Agreement that all equipment and materials not in conformity will be considered defective. 

5.8  Clean-up: COMPANY agrees to keep the work premises and adjoining waterways free of waste material and 

rubbish caused by its work or that of its subcontractors. COMPANY acknowledges that over water work is 

controlled by specific environmental regulations that prohibit depositing sawdust, debris, work materials, paint 

and other substances into the waters of Puget Sound. COMPANY further agrees to remove all waste material 

and rubbish on termination of the project, together with all its tools, equipment, machinery, and surplus 

materials. COMPANY agrees, on terminating its work at the site, to conduct general clean-up operations, 

including the cleaning of all glass surfaces, and interior floors and walls. 

5.9 Safety Precautions and Programs: COMPANY shall provide for and oversee all safety orders, precautions, and 

programs necessary to the reasonable safety of the work. In this connection, COMPANY shall take all 

precautions for the safety of all employees and other persons whom the work might affect, all work and  

materials incorporated in the project, and all property and improvements on the construction site and adjacent 

to the construction site, and shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations and orders. 

SECTION SIX 

Insurance, Bonding, And Indemnification 

6.1  Insurance: The COMPANY shall purchase and maintain such insurance as will protect COMPANY and the PORT 

from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from the COMPANY’s execution of the work, 

whether such execution be by COMPANY or by any subcontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed 

by any of them or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such insurance shall cover:  

6.1.1  Claims under worker’s compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts.  

6.1.2  Claims for damages due to bodily injury, occupational sickness or diseases, or death of COMPANY’s 

employees. 

6.1.3  Claims for damages due to bodily injury, sickness or disease of death or any person other than 

COMPANY’s employees. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

                                    CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM| Port of Kingston Office Addition Project 

6.1.4 Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage which are sustained by any 

person as a result of an act directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by the 

COMPANY, or by any other person. 

6.1.5  Claims for damages to property belonging to the Port, its tenants or third persons because of injury to 

or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom.  

6.2  Certificates of Insurance acceptable to the PORT shall be filed with the PORT prior to commencement of the 

work. These certificates shall contain a provision that coverage afforded under the policies will not be cancelled 

unless at least fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice has been given to the PORT. See Paragraph 14, Special 

Conditions.  

6.3  The COMPANY shall procure and maintain at COMPANY’s expense, during the contract time, liability insurance 

as hereinafter specified. This list is in amplification of the Terms and Conditions of section 9.1 and not in 

limitation thereof.  

6.3.1 COMPANY General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance, including vehicle coverage, issued 

to the COMPANY and protecting COMPANY from all claims for personal injury, including death, and all 

claims for destruction of or damage to property, arising out of or in connection with any operations 

under the Contract Documents, whether such operations be by COMPANY or by any subcontractor  

under COMPANY or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the COMPANY or by a subcontractor 

under them. General liability insurance will not be less than one-million ($1,000,000.00) dollars 

aggregate.  

6.3.2  The COMPANY shall procure and maintain at COMPANY’s own expense, during the contract, time in 

accordance with the provisions of the laws of the state in which the Work is performed, Worker’s 

compensation Insurance, including occupational disease provisions, for all of COMPANY’s employees at 

the site of the project. In case any Work is sublet, the COMPANY shall require such Subcontractor 

similarly to provide worker’s compensation insurance, including occupational disease provisions for all 

the latter’s employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by the 

COMPANY. In case any class of employees engaged in Hazardous Work under this contract at the site of 

this project is not protected under the worker’s compensation statute, the COMPANY shall provide 

adequate and suitable insurance for the protection of COMPANY’s employees not otherwise protected.  

6.4  Indemnification: The COMPANY will indemnify and hold harmless the PORT, their agents and employees from 

and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or resulting from 

the performance of the work, provided that any such claims, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily 

injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property, including the loss of use 

resulting therefrom; and from all environmental claims and causes of action which are  caused in whole or in 

part by any negligent or willful act or omission of the COMPANY and subcontractor, anyone directly or 

indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. In any and all claims 

against the PORT or the Engineer, or any of their agents or employees, by any employee of the COMPANY, and 

subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount of 

type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the COMPANY or any subcontractor under 

worker’s compensation acts, disability benefits acts or other employee benefit acts.  

SECTION SEVEN 

Changes in Work and Changes in Contract Price 

The PORT may at any time, as the need arises, order changes within the scope of the work without invalidating the 

Agreement. If such changes increase or decrease the amount due under the Contract Documents, or in the time required  

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

                                    CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM| Port of Kingston Office Addition Project 

for performance of the work, an equitable adjustment shall be authorized by change order. The contract price may be 

changed only by a change order. All change orders must be received in writing and approved by the Board of 

Commissioners before proceeding. The value of any work covered by a change order or of any claim for increase or 

decrease in the contract price shall be determined by one or more of the following methods in the order of precedence 

listed below:  

A.  An agreed upon lump sum; 

B.  The actual cost for labor, direct overhead, materials, supplies, equipment and other services necessary to 

complete the work. In addition, there shall be added an amount to be agreed upon but not to exceed 

fifteen (15%) percent of the actual cost of the work to cover the cost of the general overhead and profit. 

 

SECTION EIGHT 

Resolution of Dispute 

If a dispute arises concerning the provisions of this Contract or the performance by the parties, the parties agree to select 

a mediator provided through the Dispute Resolution Center of Kitsap County, with the parties paying equally the charges  

by such mediator. If good faith negotiations do not resolve the issue, then the parties will proceed in accordance with the 

Local Mandatory Arbitration Rules of the State of Washington and of the Superior Court of the State of Washington for 

Kitsap County; provided, however, that the jurisdictional limit and any limitation on the nature of remedy are hereby 

waived. The parties agree that any such arbitrator’s decision shall be binding. In the event of any dispute between the 

parties the costs and attorney’s fees of the prevailing party will be paid by the other party.  

 

SECTION NINE 

Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

 

SECTION TEN 

Entire Agreement 

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties and any prior understanding or representation 

of any kind preceding the date of this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party except to the extent incorporated 

in this Agreement. 

SECTION ELEVEN 

Modification of Agreement 

Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either party in connection with this Agreement 

shall be binding only if evidenced in writing signed by each party or an authorized representative of each party. No oral 

modifications will be effective or binding. 

SECTION TWELVE 

Notices 

All notices under this Agreement shall be deemed sufficiently given when sent by any of the following methods:  

(1) personal delivery; or (2) certified mail, postage prepaid when sent to the following: 

 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

                                    CONTRACT AGREEMENT FORM| Port of Kingston Office Addition Project 

PORT OF KINGSTON 

Attn: Jim Pivarnik 

P.O. Box 559 

Kingston, WA 98346 

COMPANY 

Homeland Construction Co Inc 

PO BOX 1688  

Kingston WA 98346 

 

SECTION THIRTEEN 

Paragraph Headings 

The titles to the paragraphs of this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties and shall not be used to 

explain, modify, simplify, or aid in the interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION FOURTEEN 

Default 

In the event COMPANY ceases performance or fails to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 

agreement, PORT reserves the right to complete the project either through third party contractors or in-house labor. 

SECTION FIFTEEN 

Timely Performance  

Time is of the essence in the performance of this contract. The parties agree that COMPANY will begin the contract 

by August 20, 2017 or date agreed to in writing by PORT and complete all work for the Port of Kingston Office 

Addition Project for the PORT by November 26, 2017.  

IN WITNESS, each party to this Agreement has caused it to be executed at Kingston, Washington, on this 19th day 

of August, 2017, by: 

COMPANY:  

Signature:  _____________________________________________ 

Print Name: ____________________________________________ 

Title:   _________________________________________________ 

PORT OF KINGSTON: 

By:    __________________________________________________ 

  Jim Pivarnik, Executive Director       

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 8A. Welcome to Kingston Electronic Sign - Discussion on Rates and Policy 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Port Staff will provide an update on the status and progress of the Welcome to Kingston 

Electronic Sign, and will distribute a Draft Electronic Sign Policy and proposed rate schedule for 

the Board’s review, discussion and direction. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

For Discussion and Direction. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON COMMUNITY WELCOME SIGN POLICY 

The Port of Kingston owns, maintains and manages the “Welcome to Kingston” reader board sign, 

located at the corner of Lindvog Road NE and Highway 104 as a benefit to the general public and 

greater Kingston community.  

The primary use of the welcome sign is to announce upcoming community events and meetings that 
are open to the public. Announcement of events on the sign is limited to nonprofit organizations, 
Kingston school booster clubs, community events that are open to the public and directly benefit a 
nonprofit organization, public meeting announcements, and emergency messages displayed in the 
interest of public health and safety. Message content suitability and approval will be at the sole 
discretion of the Port of Kingston 

Messages to advertise a business or other commercial activity will not be allowed. 

Messages containing religious or political messages or advertising such events will not be allowed. 

Community events sponsored by religious entities may be allowed so long as the event does not 

include religion instruction or counseling, religious workshops or services. 

Before a position in the electronic reader board rotation is reserved and an electronic message is 

authorized, electronic message requests must be submitted in writing on the Electronic Reader 

Board Use Application (Exhibit A). The application form is available on the Port’s website at 

www.portofkingston.org, or at the Port’s Administrative Office located at 25864 Washington Blvd. 

NE, Kingston, WA 98346. Completed applications may be submitted to the Port by mail at PO Box 

559, Kingston, WA 98346 or in person at the Port Administration Office. 

The application must be filled out completely and submitted with payment to the Port before the 

approval process will begin. Fees for use of the sign are $25 per week per message. Approved 

messages will be rotated on a regular basis for the period specified. Organizations that regularly 

advertise general meetings that are open to the public will be charged an annual fee of $50 for up to 

(12) messages per calendar year. All messages must be limited to three lines of text. (Event name, 

location, date, time). Port staff will format all messages from information provided. Per County 

regulations there will be no flashing messages or animation allowed. 

Qualifying organizations that anticipate frequent use of the electronic reader board may, upon the 

approval of the Port Controller, establish an escrow account with the Port from which the Port is 

authorized to draw applicable user fees for sign use. 

Application forms may be submitted up to six (6) months in advance, but not less than one (1) week 
in advance of desired publication date. Applications submitted less than one (1) week prior to the 
desired publication date may be considered on a first-come-first-served space-available basis and 
shall be subject to pre-emption. 

 

This policy may be amended by the Port of Kingston Commission at any time. 

 

 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



PORT OF KINGSTON COMMUNITY WELCOME SIGN USE APPLICATION 

Please complete the application in full. 

Date of Submittal:________________ 

Organization Name:________________________________________________ 

Non-Profit Status:__________________________________________________ 

Contact Name:____________________________________________________ 

Contact Phone Number:_______________________ 

Email Address:_______________________________ 

Messages are limited to three lines of text of no more than 25 character spaces. Please read the sign 

policy carefully to determine the eligibility of the message. Payment must be receive with the 

application to start the process. The message should contain the name of the event, location, date 

and time. 

                         

                         

                         

 

Qualifying organizations that anticipate frequent use of the electronic reader board may contact Port 

of Kingston Controller, Juanita Gomez at (360) 297-3545 to set up an escrow account from which 

to draw applicable user fees for sign use. 

Organizations advertising general meetings open to the public will be charged an annual fee of $50 

(maximum of 12 messages per calendar year). Please set up an account with the Port office before 

submitting applications.  

Applications may be submitted up to six (6) months in advance, and no less than one (1) week in 
advance of desired publication date.  

Number of weeks to display:_______________________ (maximum of 3 weeks) 

 

FOR PORT OF KINGSTON USE ONLY 

Message approved by:_____________________________ 

Approval Date:__________________________________ 

Payment : (circle one) CASH   CHECK (Check #_________)   CREDIT CARD 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

MEETING OF: August 23, 2017 

 

AGENDA ITEM: 8B. Master Plan Revisions - Part 4 

 

BACKGROUND: 

At the Regular Meeting of the Commission held on June 28, 2017, the Board was presented 

with Part 3 (pages 13 through 21) of the Master Plan (ver. 2012) for edit updates. Port Staff will 

distribute Part 4 (pages 22 through 30) for edit updates from the Commission. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  

For Discussion Only. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

   Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update Page 1 
 

 

  

Proudly serving the North Kitsap Maritime Community and 

Kingston’s Citizens since 1919. 

2012 Master Plan Update 

2017 Revisions - Sections & Distribution Dates  

 Part 1 (pg. 1-6): March 22, 2017 

 Part 2 (pg. 7-12): May 24, 2017 

 Part 3 (pg. 13-21): June 28, 2017 

 Part 4 (pg. 22-30): August 23, 2017 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 

   Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update Page 4 
 

Table of Contents 
 

1. Introduction    
1.1 The Kingston Port District 5 
1.2 Purpose and Scope of Master Plan 2006 5-6 
1.3 Relation to other Plans and Jurisdictions 6 

2. Background   
2.1 History of Port                                                                                   7 
2.2 Elected Commissioners                                                                   8 
2.3 Board of Commissioners 9 
2.4 Prior Master Plans 10-11 
2.5 Prior Grant Funded Projects 12 

3. The 2012 Planning Process                                                                              13 
               3.1 Survey Results Interpretation 14 
4. Context Analysis  

4.1 Area Population and Housing 15-16 
4.2 Area Economy 17 
4.3 Local Recreation 18 
4.4 Local Transportation 19-20 
4.5 Projected Future Growth of Area 21 

5. Port Profile   
5.1 The Port District 22 
5.2 Port Inventory 23 

Offshore Facilities 23-25 
Onshore Facilities 26 
Upland Facilities 27-28 

6. Economic Evaluation                                                                                        29 
               6.1 Local Economic Impact                                                                   30  
7. Needs Assessment 31 
8. Capital Improvement Plan 32 

8.1 Short-Term Objectives (5 years) 32-33 
8.2 Medium-Term Objectives (10 Years) 34-35 
8.3 Long-Term Objectives (20 Years) 35 
8.4 Timeline and Potential Funding Sources 36-37 
8.5 Operational Projects                                                                        38 

9. References 39 
10. Appendices A-C 40-57 

Master Plan (ver. 2012) 

Chapters 7 through 10 to be 

reviewed at a future 

meeting. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 22 
 

5. Port Profile 
 

 5.1 The Port District 

The Kingston Port Districts economy is largely tied to local population, services, commuter traffic, 
real estate, and housing. The Port of Kingston is both an important economic base and source of 
employment for the Kingston area. Commerce is attracted to Kingston through outside purchasers 
of marina services, products and by port visitors both of which spend money in the community. 
The moorage offered by the marina serves to attract new residents to the area which could 
increase the economic base in Kingston. The Port is the hub of Kingston’s economic life and 
downtown recreation. 
 
The Port of Kingston is comprised of 10 acres of submerged land and 11 acres of uplands, in which 
the Washington State Ferries leases 4 acres. The Port currently employs 10 employees and three 
elected Commissioners. The Port District has over 6,000 residents. The Port serves not only 
Kingston, and district nine residents but also the local communities such as Indianola, Suquamish, 
Eglon, Bainbridge Island, Poulsbo, and Silverdale. Refer to Appendix C for Port Boundary map and 
Port property identification parcels. 

 

  

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 23 
 

 5.2 Port Inventory 

Auto Ferry Terminal 

 

 

Offshore Facilities 

 

 

Ferry Docking Facilities are located north and east of the 

Kingston Marina on filled land. Facilities include a ferry dock, a 

small auxiliary dock for an idle ferry, dolphins for each, an 

access pier, toll booths, approach and holding lanes, waiting 

house, sidewalk, restrooms, parking lot, various storage sheds, 

and fencing. A 4-acre area is leased to the Washington State 

Department of Transportation by the Port of Kingston. 

Breakwater and Harbor construction began in 

1966 with the breakwater and ended in 1967 with 
completion of harbor dredging. The purpose of the 
breakwater is to allow protection for marina facilities from 
waves of storms and ships, to slow the accumulation of 
sediment by slowing water flow rates with tides, and to 
protect boats from material drift. Total length of the 
breakwater is 1,040 feet. 
 
 

Permanent Moorage consists of five floating piers. The 
main piers are lettered A through E from west to east and 
the slips of each pier increase in size to the east. Total 
permanent moorage is currently 261 slips. The original 
permanent moorage floats were built of wood in 
1967. In 1985 the floats were upgraded to concrete. Fresh 

water runs down one side of each dock. Electrical pedestals 

with meters supply 30 amps of power for each slip. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 24 
 

Guest Moorage offers transient moorage along the eastern edge of 
the harbor. Moorage is predominately on the west side of the pier, 
but a few smaller boats are able to dock between the pier and the 
breakwater near the harbor entrance. The port currently offers 49 
transient slips. The guest pier provides transient and short-term 
moorage services to recreational boaters and commercial 
fishermen. In February of 2000, an 86’ extension was added along 
with a 30’walkway to the end of the guest dock.  Small covered 
picnic areas were recently added to give boaters dry areas to enjoy 
during their stay. 

 

 

 

 

 

Covered Moorage is provided on C, D, and E dock. The 

covered areas provide protection from the elements for both 

the boats and owners. There are 20 individual covered slips 

on both C and D docks and 14 covered slips on E dock. 

 

The Fuel Pier was built in 1982 and is connected by a ramp to a high, 

fixed boardwalk the northeast corner of the harbor. The pier offers 

regular and diesel fuels. Fuel is transferred from onshore underground 

tanks by underground piping and flexible hosing attached along the 

pier. The dock is 78’ long by 12’ wide and is 936 sq. ft. The shed was 

built in 1982 and rebuilt in spring of 2002 and is 13’X6’. The two 10,000 

gallon tanks that were installed in 1967 and relined in 1986 were 

removed.  In 2007 two 12,000 gallon underground tanks were 

installed, and a new fuel dispenser was added in 2010 to support the 

fueling of passenger vessels. 

 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 25 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

The Public Fishing Pier is approximately 400 ft. long and provides 

recreation fishing for crab, squid, and other fish species. The fishing 

pier is used often in the summer and fall months when the local 

salmon runs come through. 

The Passenger Only Ferry Dock facilities were built in January 2005. 

The dock provided foot ferry service for nine months from January 

through September 2005 by Aqua Express a local provider of passenger 

service. The service was suspended and run again by the Port of 

Kingston from 2010 through September 2012. There is no current 

passenger ferry service.  

The Small water craft and launch facility was built to provide 

storage of kayaks and to provide a safe launch area for both 

kayaks and paddle boards. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 26 
 

Onshore Facilities 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

In 1997 the North Beach was purchased with funds from both the IAC 

and the Port of Kingston. The North Beach is located immediately 

north of the Washington State Ferry terminal and is accessible from a 

wood stairway. The beach fronts a bluff that is slowly eroding 

resulting in the closure of parts of the road at the top of the bluff. 

Sand beaches such as this are rare in Puget Sound and very 

attractive. North Beach is an under-utilized recreational asset owing 

to its somewhat difficult and indirect access. 

The Boat Launch site was built in 1998 with funds provided by both 

the IAC and the Port of Kingston. It provides a double lane launch 

ramp with 18 truck and trailer parking stalls. Additional truck and 

trailer parking is available on the weekends. The launch ramp is 

virtually accessible at all but the lowest minus tides. 

The Performing Arts Stage hosts a variety of events from local 

concerts to Concert on the Cove and is available for special events. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 27 
 

Upland Facilities 

 

 

 

 

 

The Port Office and Restroom Facilities were constructed in 1995. The 

Ports office is a 38’ X 28’ (1,064 sq. ft.) structure located on the second 

floor above the men and women’s restrooms, as well as a laundry 

facility. The Port office provides space for a meeting room, in which 

most Port meetings are held, and also a kiosk for marina tenants and 

guests to have access to Port staff during business hours. 

The Kingston Cove Yacht Club and Port Shop were built in 1995 and 

provide a meeting hall and outdoor picnic area for marina members. 

The facility is used for meetings and many other local gatherings, and is 

located on the upper floor of the building.  The Port Shop houses the 

maintenance equipment on the first floor. The total sq. footage of the 

building is 3,744 sq. ft. 

Mike Wallace Park is located immediately south of the ferry terminal. 

Its central location on the waterfront and adjacent to parking and 

downtown businesses makes it the focus of many community events. 

The park is 40,000 sq. ft. and offers a passive recreation and picnic 

facility to marina users and visitors. The park was originally built by the 

local labor training school in 1982. The park is a host to several local 

activities including the Four of July fireworks and concert, Farmers 

Market, summer concerts and the Annual Christmas Tree Lighting. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 28 
 

 

 

  

The Port Parking Facilities provide 105 tenant slips, 5 

employee slips, 11 yacht club slips, 51 2hr slips, 34 monthly 

permit parking slips, and 18 truck and trailer slips, 100 daily 

paid parking, and 11 handicapped slips for a total of 325 

parking slips. There are many demands for parking on Port 

property. Pedestrian ferry riders use Port parking while 

commuting or otherwise traveling to Edmonds or Seattle. 

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 29 
 

6. Economic Evaluation 
 

Washington’s ports strengthen communities by providing jobs and fortifying local economies. They 
are the only public agencies whose primary purpose is economic development. Washington’s ports 
are successful because they have substantial powers to pursue their economic development mission. 
They have the flexibility to take advantage of development opportunities that present themselves in 
the marketplace. Ports in Washington State are diverse. They own and operate shipping terminals, 
marinas and docks, airports, industrial areas, railroads and parks and recreational facilities. Some 
ports operate in all of these sectors, others in only one or two, but almost every Washington port 
pursues an aggressive program for economic development. These programs include industrial 
development, infrastructure development, import/export assistance, tourism, and entrepreneurial 
development. 

 
Ports are willing to invest for the long-term in their communities, and often in activities that create 
jobs, but not sufficient economic return to induce private sector investments. Specifically, ports have 
the authority to: 

 
• Develop marine terminals, airports and other facilities for handling cargo 

and accommodating passengers 

• Buy and improve pieces of property for lease or something to sell  to private 

industry for industrial and commercial purposes 

• Provide air and water pollution control facilities 

Operate trade centers and export trading 

companies 

• Enter into public works contracts  

• Establish and operate foreign trade zones 

• Provide environmental enhancement, protection and public access 

• Build and operate or lease out marinas and related facilities and provide public 
boat ramps for public use 

• Promote tourism as an economic stimulus within the Port district 

 

 
  

D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T



 
 
 

Port of Kingston 2012 Master Plan Update                                                                                                      

 Page 30 
 

6.1 Local Economic Impact 

 
As described in the Local Economy section of this report, Kingston experiences significant traffic 
volumes as a terminal on the third busiest freight mobility routes of the Washington State Ferry 
system. Much of the traffic is through traffic and creates little if any downtown area spending. 
Kingston has the opportunity to provide those travelers a reason to stop, and the local community the 
potential to capture increased visitor spending. The Ferry System Traffic data is the best source of 
information for estimating visitor traffic volumes. The passenger volumes for the Edmonds/Kingston 
run for 2011 was 3,876,602 riders. There were 2,061,554 vehicles, 1,293,412 passengers with vehicle, 
and 521,836 passengers. State generated $1.8 billion in local, state, and federal tax collections in 
2011.These businesses depend on not only the local residents, but those who travel through the area.  

 
Source: www.watourismalliance.com, www.wasdot.wa.gov 
 
 

The daily demand for westbound ferry travel is expected to increase by an average of 70% system wide 
between 1993 and 2015, while P.M. peak-period demand is expected to increase almost 90%. Even 
greater demand is expected in the Central Sound Corridor, which includes the Seattle/Bainbridge 
Island, Seattle/Bremerton, and Kingston/Edmonds routes. The estimated annual growth rate for 
Kingston over the next 25 years is 4%, almost double the historic growth for the county. 
 
 
www.wasdot.wa.gov 

 

The estimated average dollars spent by each boater to Kingston is $386.49 per boat night. The 
Port of Kingston had approximately 4,567 boats nights, which generated $1,765,099.83 to the 
Kingston community in 2011. 
 
 

 
Estimated Number of Boats to Kingston based on linear feet of moorage sold and 

estimated average length of 30’ 

Year Dollar Amount Percentage/Feet Total boat nights 

2011 $116,451 .85/30’ 4,567 

2010 $106,107 .85/30’ 4,161 

2009 $113,285 .75/30’ 5,035 

2008 $94,500 .65/30’ 4,846 
 
 
Source: Dean Runyan Associated January 2012 

 

  
D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T
 D

R
A

F
T

 D
R

A
F

T


	AGENDA REGULAR MEETING AUG 23 2017.pdf
	MINUTES REGULAR MEETING JULY 26 2017.pdf
	BACKGROUND WARRANTS AUG 23.pdf
	BACKGROUND JULY 2017 FINANCIALS.pdf
	Port of Kingston July 2017 Financial Statement.pdf
	BACKGROUND COMMUNICATIONS COORDINATOR.pdf
	communications.pdf
	BACKGROUND CERB STUDY SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT.pdf
	BACKGROUND ENDURIS UPDATE.pdf
	BACKGROUND OFFICE EXPANSION.pdf
	office contract.pdf
	BACKGROUND ELEC SIGN RATES AND POLICY.pdf
	Microsoft Word - Greater Kingston Sign Policy.pdf
	BACKGROUND MASTER PLAN UPDATE PART 4.pdf
	Port of Kingston Master Plan 2012 Final 2017 UPDATES PART 4-Copy.pdf



